Fulton County Elementary School

Policy #2.14

Required Policy - [KRS 160.345(11)]

SISI Standards

Policy Creation Date: September 2005

Policy Revision Date: July 2008/March 2011/January 2016/March 2021

Policy Review Date: July 2008/November 2018

WELLNESS

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Fulton County Elementary School Wellness and Nutrition Policy is to ensure that all students at FCES are provided with a safe and healthy environment that promotes wellness through high quality health education and physical education to enrich student learning and ensure success. We believe student health is closely associated with academic achievement, attendance rate and behavior supports, thus our students need to be striving for healthy lifestyles in order to truly be prepared for "college and career readiness."

PROCEDURES

The Fulton County Elementary School maintains a Wellness Committee to create, strengthen and support school policy on the promotion of student health and wellness. This committee will report to the SBDM at a minimum every two months to provide updates on school progress of implementation of this policy and other programs.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND ACTIVITY

Our school recognizes that a Comprehensive School Physical Activity Program (CAPAP) is an approach our school will utilize all opportunities for school-based physical activity to develop physically educated students who participate in the nationally-recommended 60+ minutes of physical activity each day and develop the knowledge, skills, and confidence to be physically active for a lifetime. With a CSPAP, quality physical education is the cornerstone of the program while also including school-based physical activity opportunities; school employee wellness and involvement; and family and community involvement.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

- A certified physical education teacher will provide instruction.
- Physical education teachers are allocated 24 hours annually to participate in professional learning communities to address issues related to instructional practices, data analysis and improve instruction.
- Students will receive the equivalent of 150 minutes of physical education per week.
- Our school will use the Physical Education Curriculum Assessment Tool (PECAT) annually to determine scope and sequence to deliver grade level benchmarks of the Kentucky Core Academic Standards (KCAS):
- All students will be assessed on the KCAS and receive a written grade based on the school grading schedule.
- Physical education class sizes follow the district policy for pupil-teacher ratio in non-PE classrooms.

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY DURING THE SCHOOL DAY

- All students will receive at least 30 minutes of physical activity outside of physical education class. This can occur in several ways:
 - Lesson plans include planned student movement and are integrated into academic lessons.
 - Teachers shall make all reasonable efforts to avoid periods of more than forty minutes when students are physically inactive. When possible, physical activity should be integrated into learning activities. When that is not possible, students should be given periodic breaks during which they are encouraged to stand and be moderately active.
- Incentives will be used during the school year to encourage each class to engage in physical activity.
- Our school prohibits the use of physical activity as punishment (e.g., running laps, pushups), and the withholding of physical activity/physical education time for behavior management. Our school also prohibits withholding physical activity/physical education time for make-up work.

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY BEFORE AND AFTER SCHOOL

- Students will be provided opportunities to participate in physical activity clubs with access to adequate facilities, equipment and supervision.
- Our school will provide students with 30 minutes of physical activity time before school begins each day. Students will also be provided access to school grounds and facilities after school for unstructured free play and physical activity opportunities.

STAFF WELLNESS

- School highly values the health and well-being of every staff member and will plan and implement activities and policies that support personal efforts by staff to maintain a healthy lifestyle. Our school will establish and maintain a staff wellness committee composed of at least one staff member, school health council member, dietitian or other food service professional, and physical education representative. The committee should develop, promote, and oversee a multifaceted plan to promote staff health and wellness. The plan should be based on input solicited from school staff and should outline ways to encourage healthy eating, physical activity, and other elements of a healthy lifestyle among school staff. The staff wellness committee should distribute its plan to the school health council annually.
- The school has a designee to coordinate and provide professional development, for staff members, to integrate physical activity into the classroom setting.

FAMILY AND COMMUNITY

- Our school will encourage the use of school facilities through a shared use agreement for community members in order to create physical activity opportunities. All parties must follow the district policies and procedures for facility usage.
- Our school will provide information about physical education and other school-based physical activity opportunities before, during, and after the school day; and support parents' efforts to provide their children with opportunities to be physically active outside of school. Such supports will include sharing information about physical activity and physical education through a website, newsletter, or other take-home materials, special events, or physical education homework.

SCHOOL NUTRITION

- Our school will adhere to all guidelines of the USDA National School Lunch Program.
- Our school shall encourage healthy choices among students using the following methods:
 - Increase breakfast participation via second chance as well as "grab-n-go" programs.
 - Schedule adequate time for all school meals (702 KAR 6:060).
- Our school shall implement the nutritional standards required by federal and state laws and regulations. Those rules apply to our food program and to other food and beverages available during the school day.
- Parents may block the purchase of "extras" from their child's cafeteria account.
- School Nutrition Personnel will work closely with the parent(s) and/or guardian(s) to make reasonable accommodations for students with disability or other special dietary needs.
- School cafeteria managers shall annually receive a minimum of two (2) hours of continuing education in applied nutrition and healthy meal planning and preparation (KRS 158.852)
- In compliance with the federal Healthy Hunger Free Kids Act and 702 KAR 006:090, any food item offered for sale through a vending machine, school store, canteen, or fundraiser on school property shall meet the established state requirements.
- Use Smarter Lunchroom strategies for increasing healthy food selection (i.e. place fruits and vegetables near cafeteria or at easy access, etc.).
- Provide information to students or families on the nutrition, caloric, and sodium content of foods available

NUTRITION EDUCATION AND PROMOTION

- Our Practical Living curriculum shall address the full Kentucky Academic Standards, including health, consumerism, and physical education.
- School ensures content of the Health Education Curriculum is frequently integrated into all content areas to meet the health and safety needs of all students.
- Drinking water is encouraged and available to students free of charge at all times during the school day.
- Sports drinks are not available in the school setting except when provided by the school for student athletes participating in sport programs involving vigorous activity of more than one hour.
- Price nutritious foods and beverages at a lower cost while increasing the price of less nutritious foods and beverages

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

To support children's health and school nutrition-education efforts, school fundraising activities will not involve food or will use only foods that meet the above nutrition and portion size standards for foods and beverages sold individually. Schools will encourage fundraising activities that promote physical activity. The school district will make available a list of ideas for acceptable fundraising activities.

SNACKS

Snacks served during the school day or in after-school care or enrichment programs will make a positive contribution to children's diets and health, with an emphasis on serving fruits and vegetables as the primary snacks and water as the primary beverage. Schools will assess if and when to offer snacks based on timing of school meals, children's nutritional needs, children's ages, and other considerations. The district will disseminate a list of healthful snack items to teachers, after-school program personnel, and parents.

• If eligible, schools that provide snacks through after-school programs will pursue receiving reimbursements through the National School Lunch Program.

REWARDS

Schools will not use foods or beverages, especially those that do not meet the nutrition standards for foods and beverages sold individually (above), as rewards for academic performance or good behavior, and will not withhold food or beverages (including food served through school meals) as a punishment.

CELEBRATIONS

Schools should limit celebrations that involve food during the school day to no more than one party per class per month. Each party should include not include food or beverages that do not meet nutrition standards for foods and beverages sold individually (above). The district will disseminate a list of healthy party ideas to parents and teachers.

SCHOOL SPONSORED EVENTS

School sponsored events are identified as (such as, but not limited to, athletic events, dances, or performances). Foods and beverages offered or sold at school-sponsored events outside the school day will meet the nutrition standards for meals or for foods and beverages sold individually (above).

FOOD MARKETING IN SCHOOLS

School-based marketing will be consistent with nutrition education and health promotion. As schools will limit food and beverage marketing to the promotion of foods and beverages that meet the nutrition standards for meals or for foods and beverages sold individually (above). School-based marketing of brands promoting predominantly low-nutrition foods and beverage is prohibited. The promotion of healthy foods, including fruits, vegetables, whole grains, and low-fat dairy products is encouraged.

Examples of marketing techniques include the following: logos and brand names on/in vending machines, books or curricula, textbook covers, school supplies, scoreboards, school structures, and sports equipment; educational incentive programs that provide food as a reward; programs that provide schools with supplies when families buy low nutrition food products; free samples or coupons; and food sales through fundraising activities. Marketing activities that promote healthful behaviors (and are therefore allowable) include vending machine covers promoting water; pricing structures that promote healthy options in a la carte lines or vending machines; sales of fruit for fundraisers; and coupons for discount gym memberships.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH PARENTS

School will support parents' efforts to provide a healthy diet. Our school will offer healthy eating seminars for parents, send home nutrition information, post nutrition tips on school websites, and provide nutrient analyses of school menus. Schools should encourage parents to pack healthy lunches and snacks and to refrain from including beverages and foods that do not meet the above nutrition standards for individual foods and beverages. Our school will provide parents a list of foods that meet the district's snack standards and ideas for healthy celebrations/parties, rewards, and fundraising activities. In addition, the district/school will provide opportunities for parents to share their healthy food practices with others in the school community.

The provisions of this policy shall be implemented to comply with provisions required by federal law, state law, or local board policy. If any specific requirement above does not fit with those rules, the principal shall notify the council so that the policy can be amended to fit.

MEASUREMENT AND EVALUATION

In compliance with 702 KAR 6:090, Fulton County Kentucky Middle School will utilize the Alliance for a Healthier Generation's Healthy Schools Program to evaluate the school environment. This report will be shared annually with the district as required by KRS 160.345 (11) and release the report at least 60 days prior to the public forum required by KRS 158.856 (5). Results will be reported to parents and community stakeholders via the school's website.

POLILCY EVALUATION

The Fulton County Middle School Wellness committee will oversee the implementation and evaluation of this policy. The Wellness Committee shall periodically report to the school principal and SBDM on the content and progress of implementation of the school's wellness efforts. The report shall include:

- Extent to which the school is in compliance with this policy;
- A timeline for an annual review and comparison (e.g. KDE CSPAP Continuum Document) of how the school measures up to model wellness policies provided by recognized state and national authorities; and
- A designated school representative of the Wellness Committee will communicate on the
 description of the measurable progress made towards reaching goals of the school
 wellness policy and address any gaps identified in the wellness report for the previous
 year.
- Our school shall encourage healthy snacks for parties, snack-time, and after school activities. Outside foods not provided by the school are encouraged to meet healthy food guidelines. These guidelines will be listed on the school website.
- The rest of our curriculum shall reflect an integrated concern for wellness, including connections to Science, Social Studies, and other subjects.

POLICY EVALUATION

The provisions of this policy shall be implemented to comply with provisions required by federal law, state law, or local board policy. If any specific requirement above does not comply with those rules, the principal shall notify the council so that the policy can be amended.